
   
 

                                      Amendment Number 2 
 
 

 

Amendment to Fairfax County Sheriff’s RFP TEL-1601: 

Inmate Telephone Service for the Fairfax County Adult Detention Center 

Amendment Dated August 26, 2015 



1. AMENDMENT #2 – SECTION 1 

 
Amendment #2, Section 1 consists of the answers to the written questions submitted for RFP TEL-1601 Inmate Telephone 
Service for the Fairfax County Sheriff’s Office. 
 

 
Q.1 Page 26, section 8.7 FCADC requests that we submit a Dun and Bradstreet report. We respectfully request that            

FCADC permit the submitting vendor to supply a Moody’s report as an alternative.  
 

A.1. Yes, FCSO will accept a Moody’s report as an alternative to the Dun and Bradstreet report.  
 
 

Q.2 Page 12, section 3.8.1 outlines the order of precedence for this response and contract. We respectfully request that 
the order of precedence be changed to the following: Negotiated Agreement; Vendor’s final proposal; any 
amendments or addenda; RFP and any amendments or addenda. We respectfully request this change due to the 
fact that if we take an exception to a requirement within the RFP, we will still be bound by the order of precedence 
to meet the original requirement, thus voiding our exception.  
 
A.2. The order of precedence as outlined in the RFP will not be revised.   

 
  

Q.3 Page 31, section 10.1.1 states that the bidder shall provide the names of bidder’s employees, consultants, and 
subcontractors that will be involved in providing the requirements in this RFP and the Contract. Will the FCADC 
allow the submitting vendor to supply key personnel only, since numerous people will be involved in the 
installation and on-going support of this solution? 

 
A.3. Yes, FCSO will allow Bidder to supply key personnel only.  
 
 

Q.4 Page 32, section 10.1.3.2 states the vendor must submit “The names, company, primary physical work location, 
telephone numbers, and distance from Facilities for the technicians who will be maintaining, servicing and 
performing work under the Contract”. We respectfully request we be permitted to supply only the key personnel 
and the primary individuals who will be responsible for the above.  
 
A.4. Bidder shall supply the information as is required in this section of the RFP.  
 
 

Q.5 Page 36, sections 10.8.8 and 10.8.9 defines gross revenue. Since the FCADC states on page 35, 10.8.1 that it shall 
not earn commissions on gross revenue and that a MAG of $673,000 (page 35, 10.8.2) is required, we respectfully 
request these definitions be removed.  

 
A.5. The definitions of gross revenue will not be removed from the RFP.   
 
 

Q.6 Page 41, section 10.10 references the bidder shall furnish, install and maintain six (6) public pay telephone(s) for 
use by the general public. Please provide the locations of all six (6) public pay telephones and their current calling 
volumes.  
 
A.6. The public pay telephones are located as follows:  (4) in the ground floor lobby area and (2) in the 1st floor lobby area 

of the Adult Detention Center. Current calling volumes for these public pay telephones are not available at this time.  
 
 

Q.7 On page 51, section 11.7.1.11 the requirement has been left blank. Is there a requirement for this section or just a 
numbering error? 

 
A.7. Section 11.7.1.11 of the RFP is a numbering error and shall be disregarded. 



Q.8 On pages 68 and 69 the FCADC is requesting resumes. Please confirm that the submitting vendor is permitted to 
use our existing resume formats provided the required information is present and remains at 2 pages or less per 
resume.  

 
A.8. Bidder may use an alternate resume format that shall include the information required by the RFP and adhere to the 

limit of 2 pages or less.   
 
 

Q.9 With regard to page 17, table number 3, is there any advantage given to a Fairfax County based business under 
the evaluation criteria? If not would the County consider amending its evaluation criteria to provide preference 
for a Fairfax County business? 

 
A.9. No, there will not be an advantage given to a Fairfax County based business and the evaluation criteria will not be 

amended.  
 
 

Q.10 Page 58, section 12, under the call time limit, states that the call time limits is 15 minutes. Page 60, section 13 
states that the current call time limit is 30 minutes. Please confirm that the actual call time limit is 30 minutes.  

 
A.10. The current call time limit is 30 minutes, however FCSO may revise the call time limit to 15 minutes.  
 
 

Q.11 Please confirm that Sleuth is the vendor who provides the County with the Inmate Financial Software product 
and that the County is not using Keefe Supply’s accounting software.  

 
A.11. Yes, FCSO uses Sleuth for its inmate banking software as outlined in Section 11.10.7 of the inmate telephone RFP.  
 
 

Q.12 Please confirm that if a vendor proposes a higher MAG within their proposal than the MAG mandated by the 
RFP it will not be evaluated any differently, or receive additional points, than a vendor who complies with the 
RFP’s requested MAG amount of $673,000. 

 
A.12. FCSO is not requiring a Minimum Annual Guarantee “MAG” as part of this RFP. Bidders will not be evaluated 

differently or receive additional points for proposing an amount larger than the requirement listed in section 10.8 – 
Financial Guarantee and Reporting.  

 
 

Q.13 On page 62 of the RFP, the FCADC is requesting “Bidder Proposed Calling Rates and Fees”. Is the responding 
vendor restricted to one bidder-supplied “Bidder Proposed Calling Rates and Fees” or is the responding vendor 
permitted to copy this form and submit multiple “Bidder Proposed Calling Rates and Fees”? 

 
A.13. Please reference the first paragraph of Appendix B – Calling Rates in the RFP.  
 
 

Q.14 Section 10.8.2 requires “an upfront payment in the amount of $673,000.00 for each year of the Initial Term 
(‘Financial Guarantee’).” The Financial Guarantee is also listed among the factors evaluated under “Customer 
Service & General Requirements (Section 10),” worth 40 points per the Evaluation Criteria on p. 17. Are bidders 
allowed to propose more than $673,000.00 per year for the Financial Guarantee and, if so, will larger amounts be 
awarded more points in the evaluation of Section 10? 

 
A.14. Please refer to the answer provided for Q.13 above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Q.15 Item 8.5 reads: “All firms doing business in Fairfax County, shall obtain a license as required by Chapter 4, 
Article 7, of The Code of the County of Fairfax, Virginia, as amended, entitled "Business, Professional and 
Occupational Licensing (“BPOL”) Tax." Questions concerning the BPOL Tax should be directed to the 
Department of Tax Administration, telephone (703) 222-8234 or visit: 
http://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/dta/business_tax.htm. 
The BPOL Tax number must be indicated in the space provided on the Cover Sheet." The "BPOL" application 
process takes six weeks and requires a physical address within the county. Please clarify if vendors without a 
BPOL, or who have a BPOL in process, will be considered compliant at the time of submitting the response. 

 
A.15. For the purpose of Bidder’s response to the RFP, Bidders do not need to demonstrate that their BPOL application is 

in process. However, the successful Bidder must submit the required license application within 75 days after award 
of the RFP.  

 
 
Q.16 How many inmates are booked per day, on average? How long do inmates stay in booking? 

 
A.16. FCSO estimates an average of 150 inmates are booked into the Adult Detention Center each day and remain in 

booking for approximately 24 hours.   
  
 
Q.17 On page 61 of the RFP there is are two fees listed “Pre-paid Funding (IVR. Live operator and via Web) listed at 

$5.00 / Pre-paid Funding (Third Party) listed at $0.00.  Then it is stated that no other fees are allowed. Please 
clarify if this means that no other associated fees can be charged (e.g., for trust deposits or ITS). 

 
A.17. The only fees FCSO will allow are those listed in Option 1 of Appendix B – Calling Rates.  

 
 
Q.18 What is the historic call volume by month? Can the County provide 24, or even 12, months of call volume reports? 

 
A.18. Please refer to Appendix A – Facility Specifications to acquire call statistics based on a total of 12-months.  These will 

be the only call statistics that will be provided.  
 
 
Q.19 Please provide the last 12 months of call traffic data broken out by call type.  
 

A.19. Please refer to the answer provided for Q.18. 
 
 

Q.20 RFP p. 49, item 11.5.34 indicates there are ICE detainees. What is the average monthly population for detainees? 
 
A.20. FCSO estimates the average monthly population of ICE detainees to be 21. 
 
 

Q.21 Please provide a copy of the current inmate phone service agreement.  
 

A.21. A copy of the current inmate telephone service agreement and subsequent amendments has been enclosed as part of 
this Amendment #2.  

 
 

Q.22 Page 9 of the RFP, Table 1, stipulates that the maximum page limit for the Technical Volume (response to  
Sections 1-11) of the RFP is 150 pages. Items 1-11 are already 57 pages long. This means that bidders must answer 
using only 93 pages. Please clarify that bidders must list and respond to all items 1-11 including instructions and 
other items that do not really require a response.  

 
A.22. Bidders shall list and respond to all items (including instructions) in Sections 1-11 within the allowed page limit of 

150. The page limit does not include the Cover Page or Table of Contents.  A piece of paper, printed on both sides, 
counts as 2 pages. For example, the Sections 1-11 page limit is 150 pages, but will be 75 individual sheets of paper in 
print form. 

tel:%28703%29%20222-8234
http://www.fairfaxcounty.gov/dta/business_tax.htm


Q.23 Please provide the revenue amount currently received by inmate telephone services.  
 
A.23. Please refer to the below chart for the revenue generated from August 2014 – July 2015 
 
 

Total Revenue 

August 2014  $              69,459.51  

September 2014  $              68,006.58  

October 2014  $              70,599.37  

November 2014  $              67,274.82  

December 2014  $              69,886.10  

January 2015  $              64,473.34  

February 2015  $              62,059.33  

March 2015  $              67,468.16  

April 2015  $              64,409.23  

May 2015  $              69,186.90  

June 2015  $              64,540.10  

July 2015  $              66,781.32  

Total  $           804,144.76  
 
 

Q.24 Will the county please outline the fees that are being charged by the current vendor:  

 Bill statement fee 

 Prepaid account set-up fee 

 Prepaid account funding via web 

 Prepaid account funding via telephone 

 Wireless about maintenance fee  

 State regulatory cost recovery fee or percent of call cost 

 Federal regulatory cost recovery fee or percent of call cost 

 Refund processing fee  

 Other fees  
 

A.24. Please refer to the current agreement and its associated amendments to acquire the approved fees. 
 
 

Q.25 Does the county desire kiosk services? 
 

A.25. FCSO is interested in receiving information on a variety of additional technologies, including kiosk services, as 
outlined in Section 11.14. - Additional Technology of the RFP.  

 
 

Q.26 Section 11.5.33.1 references “the number of TDD telephones and ports specified in Appendix A – Facility 
Specifications.” Please clarify how many TDD telephones are required as part of this RFP.  

 
A.26. FCSO requires the provision of two (2) TDD phones and associated printers.  
 
 



2. AMENDMENT #2 – SECTION 2 

Amendment #2, Section 2 amends Section 3.12 – Time for Receiving Proposal, Table 2 – Schedule of Events, as follows: 
 
 

Table 1 - Schedule of Events 

Event Date 

Release of the RFP July 20, 2015 

Deadline for Optional Pre-Bid Conference 
and Site Evaluation Registration Form 

July 29, 2015 

Optional Pre-Bid Conference and Site 
Evaluation 

August 6, 2015 1PM (EDT)  
Confinement Roll Call Room  

10520 Judicial Drive, Fairfax, VA 22030  

Deadline for Written Questions August 14, 2015 

Final Date to Disseminate Answers to 
Written Questions 

August 26, 2015 

Proposal Due Date September 11, 2015 

 
 
 
 
 








































































